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§ 27.3 Penalty Adjustment Table. 

Table 1 identifies statutes adminis-
tered by the Coast Guard that author-
ize a civil monetary penalty. The ‘‘ad-

justed maximum penalty’’ is the max-
imum penalty authorized by the Fed-
eral Civil Penalties Inflation Adjust-
ment Act of 1990, as amended, as deter-
mined by the Coast Guard. 

TABLE 1.—CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY INFLATION ADJUSTMENTS 

U.S. Code citation Civil monetary penalty description 
Adjusted max-
imum penalty 
amount ($)* 

14 U.S.C. 88(c) ................................. Saving Life and Property ........................................................................... 6,500 
14 U.S.C. 645(i) ................................ Confidentiality of Medical Quality Assurance Records (first offense) ....... 3,300 
14 U.S.C. 645(i) ................................ Confidentiality of Medical Quality Assurance Records (subsequent of-

fenses).
27,000 

33 U.S.C. 471 ................................... Anchorage Ground/Harbor Regulations General ...................................... 110 
33 U.S.C. 474 ................................... Anchorage Ground/Harbor Regulations St. Mary’s river ........................... 220 
33 U.S.C. 495 ................................... Bridges/Failure to Comply with Regulations ............................................. 1,100 
33 U.S.C. 499 ................................... Bridges/Drawbridges .................................................................................. 1,100 
33 U.S.C. 502 ................................... Bridges/Failure to Alter Bridge Obstructing Navigation ............................. 1,100 
33 U.S.C. 533 ................................... Bridges/Maintenance and Operation ......................................................... 1,100 
33 U.S.C. 1208(a) ............................. Bridge to Bridge Communication ............................................................... 650 
33 U.S.C. 1208(b) ............................. Bridge to Bridge Communication ............................................................... 650 
33 U.S.C. 1232 ................................. PWSA Regulations .................................................................................... 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1236(b) ............................. Vessel Navigation: Regattas or Marine Parades ...................................... 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 1236(c) ............................. Vessel Navigation: Regattas or Marine Parades ...................................... 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 1236(d) ............................. Vessel Navigation: Regattas or Marine Parades ...................................... 2,750 
33 U.S.C. 1319(d) ............................. Pollution Prevention ................................................................................... 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(A) .................... Pollution Prevention (per violation) ............................................................ 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(A) .................... Pollution Prevention (total under subparagraph) ...................................... 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(B) .................... Pollution Prevention (per day of violation) ................................................ 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(B) .................... Pollution Prevention (total under subparagraph) ...................................... 157,500 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(B)(i) ................. Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges (per violation) ............................. 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(B)(i) ................. Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges (total under paragraph) .............. 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(B)(ii) ................ Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges (per day of violation) .................. 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(B)(ii) ................ Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges (total under paragraph) .............. 157,500 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(7)(A) .................... Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges (per day of violation) .................. 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(7)(A) .................... Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges (per barrel of oil or unit of 

hazsub discharged).
1,100 

33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(7)(B) .................... Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges .................................................... 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(7)(C) .................... Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges .................................................... 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(7)(D) .................... Oil/Hazardous Substances: Discharges (per barrel of oil or unit of 

hazsub discharged)..
3,300 

33 U.S.C. 1321(j) .............................. Oil/Hazardous Substances: Prevention Regulations ................................. 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1322(j) .............................. Marine Sanitation Devices ......................................................................... 2,200 
33 U.S.C. 1322(j) .............................. Marine Sanitation Devices ......................................................................... 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 1517(a) ............................. Deepwater Ports Regulations .................................................................... 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 1608(a) ............................. International Regulations ........................................................................... 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 1608(b) ............................. International Regulations ........................................................................... 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 1908(b)(1) ........................ Pollution from Ships ................................................................................... 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 1908(b)(2) ........................ Pollution from Ships ................................................................................... 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 2072(a) ............................. Inland Navigation Rules ............................................................................ 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 2072(b) ............................. Inland Navigation Rules ............................................................................ 6,500 
33 U.S.C. 2609(a) ............................. Shore Protection ........................................................................................ 32,500 
33 U.S.C. 2609(b) ............................. Shore Protection ........................................................................................ 11,000 
33 U.S.C. 2716a(a) ........................... Oil Pollution Liability and Compensation ................................................... 32,500 
46 U.S.C. 1505(a) ............................. Safe Containers for International Cargo ................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. App 1805(c)(2) ................. Suspension of passenger service ............................................................. 60,000 
46 U.S.C. 2110(e) ............................. Vessel inspection or examination fees ...................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 2115 ................................. Alcohol and dangerous drug testing ......................................................... 5,500 
46 U.S.C. 2302(a) ............................. Negligent operations: recreational vessels ................................................ 5,000 
46 U.S.C. 2302(a) ............................. Negligent operations: other vessels .......................................................... 25,000 
46 U.S.C. 2302(c)(1) ......................... Negligent operations .................................................................................. 5,500 
46 U.S.C. 2306(a)(2)(B)(4) ............... Vessel Reporting Requirements: Owner ................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 2306(b)(2) ........................ Vessel Reporting Requirements: Master ................................................... 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 3102(c)(1) ......................... Immersion suits .......................................................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 3302(i)(5) .......................... Inspection Permit ....................................................................................... 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 3318(a) ............................. Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 3318(g) ............................. Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 3318(h) ............................. Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 3318(i) .............................. Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 3318(j)(1) .......................... Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 3318(j)(1) .......................... Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 2,200 
46 U.S.C. 3318(k) ............................. Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 11,000 
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TABLE 1.—CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY INFLATION ADJUSTMENTS—Continued 

U.S. Code citation Civil monetary penalty description 
Adjusted max-
imum penalty 
amount ($)* 

46 U.S.C. 3318(l) .............................. Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 3502(e) ............................. List/count of passengers ........................................................................... 110 
46 U.S.C. 3504(c) ............................. Notification to passengers ......................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 3504(c) ............................. Notification to passengers ......................................................................... 650 
46 U.S.C. 3506 ................................. Copies of laws on passenger vessels ....................................................... 220 
46 U.S.C. 3718(a)(1) ........................ Dangerous cargo carriage ......................................................................... 32,500 
46 U.S.C. 4106 ................................. Uninspected vessels .................................................................................. 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 4311(b) ............................. Recreational vessels (maximum for related series of violations) .............. 120,000 
46 U.S.C. 4311(b) ............................. Recreational vessels ................................................................................. 2,200 
46 U.S.C. 4311(c) ............................. Recreational vessels ................................................................................. 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 4507 ................................. Vessel inspection ....................................................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 4703 ................................. Abandonment of barges ............................................................................ 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 5116(a) ............................. Load lines .................................................................................................. 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 5116(b) ............................. Load lines .................................................................................................. 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 5116(c) ............................. Load lines .................................................................................................. 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 6103(a) ............................. Reporting marine casualties ...................................................................... 27,500 
46 U.S.C. 6103(b) ............................. Reporting marine casualties ...................................................................... 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 8101(e) ............................. Manning of inspected vessels ................................................................... 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 8101(f) .............................. Manning of inspected vessels ................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 8101(g) ............................. Manning of inspected vessels ................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 8101(h) ............................. Manning of inspected vessels ................................................................... 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 8102(a) ............................. Watchmen on passenger vessels ............................................................. 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 8103(f) .............................. Citizenship requirements ........................................................................... 650 
46 U.S.C. 8104(i) .............................. Watches on vessels .................................................................................. 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 8104(j) .............................. Watches on vessels .................................................................................. 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 8302(e) ............................. Staff department on vessels ...................................................................... 110 
46 U.S.C. 8304(d) ............................. Officer’s competency certificates ............................................................... 110 
46 U.S.C. 8502(e) ............................. Coastwise Pilotage .................................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 8502(f) .............................. Coastwise Pilotage .................................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 8503 ................................. Federal Pilots ............................................................................................. 32,500 
46 U.S.C. 8701(d) ............................. Merchant mariners documents .................................................................. 650 
46 U.S.C. 8702(e) ............................. Crew requirements .................................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 8906 ................................. Small vessel manning ................................................................................ 27,500 
46 U.S.C. 9308(a) ............................. Pilotage: Great Lakes ................................................................................ 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 9308(b) ............................. Pilotage: Great Lakes ................................................................................ 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 9308(c) ............................. Pilotage: Great Lakes ................................................................................ 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 10104(b) ........................... Failure to report sexual offense ................................................................ 6,500 
46 U.S.C. 10307 ............................... Posting of agreements .............................................................................. 110 
46 U.S.C. 10308(b) ........................... Foreign engagements by seamen ............................................................. 110 
46 U.S.C. 10309(b) ........................... Replacement of lost/deserted seamen ...................................................... 220 
46 U.S.C. 10310 ............................... Discharge of seamen ................................................................................ 65 
46 U.S.C. 10312(c) ........................... Foreign/intercoastal voyages ..................................................................... 110 
46 U.S.C. 10314(a)(2) ...................... Pay advances to seamen .......................................................................... 650 
46 U.S.C. 10314(b) ........................... Pay advances to seamen .......................................................................... 650 
46 U.S.C. 10315(c) ........................... Allotment to seamen .................................................................................. 650 
46 U.S.C. 10321 ............................... Seamen protection: general ...................................................................... 220 
46 U.S.C. 10505(b) ........................... Advances ................................................................................................... 650 
46 U.S.C. 10508(b) ........................... Seamen protection: general ...................................................................... 22 
46 U.S.C. 10711 ............................... Effects of deceased seamen ..................................................................... 220 
46 U.S.C. 10902(a)(2) ...................... Complaints of unfitness ............................................................................. 650 
46 U.S.C. 10903(d) ........................... Proceedings on examination of vessel ..................................................... 110 
46 U.S.C. 10907(b) ........................... Permission to make complaint .................................................................. 650 
46 U.S.C. 11101(f) ............................ Accommodations for seamen .................................................................... 650 
46 U.S.C. 11102(b) ........................... Medicine chests on vessels ....................................................................... 650 
46 U.S.C. 11104(b) ........................... Destitute seamen ....................................................................................... 110 
46 U.S.C. 11105(c) ........................... Wages on discharge .................................................................................. 650 
46 U.S.C. 11303(a) ........................... Log books .................................................................................................. 220 
46 U.S.C. 11303(b) ........................... Log books .................................................................................................. 220 
46 U.S.C. 11303(c) ........................... Log books .................................................................................................. 165 
46 U.S.C. 11506 ............................... Carrying of sheath knives .......................................................................... 65 
46 U.S.C. 12122(a) ........................... Identification of vessels ............................................................................. 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 12122(c) ........................... Vessel Documentation ............................................................................... 110,000 
46 U.S.C. 12309(b) ........................... Numbering of undocumented vessels ....................................................... 1,100 
46 U.S.C. 12507(b) ........................... Vessel identification system ...................................................................... 11,000 
46 U.S.C. 14701 ............................... Measurement of vessels ........................................................................... 27,000 
46 U.S.C. 14701 ............................... Registry/recording: tonnage ....................................................................... 27,000 
46 U.S.C. 14702 ............................... Measurement/false statements .................................................................. 27,000 
46 U.S.C. 31309 ............................... Instruments and liens ................................................................................ 11,000 
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TABLE 1.—CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY INFLATION ADJUSTMENTS—Continued 

U.S. Code citation Civil monetary penalty description 
Adjusted max-
imum penalty 
amount ($)* 

49 U.S.C. 5123(a)(1)** ...................... Hazardous materials—related to vessels .................................................. 32,500 

* The penalty amounts listed in this column include penalties that were adjusted in 1997 and 2003; some penalties that were 
adjusted in 1997 did not qualify for an adjustment this year according to the rounding rules. However, we decided to include the 
adjusted 1997 penalties that were not adjusted in 2003 to show the comprehensive list of civil penalties. 

** 49 U.S.C. 5123(a)(1) was formerly 49 U.S.C. 1809(a)(1). 

[USCG–2003–15486, 68 FR 74194, Dec. 23, 2003] 
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SUBCHAPTER A—GENERAL 
EDITORIAL NOTE: This listing is provided for informational purposes only. It is compiled and 

kept up-to-date by the Coast Guard, Department of Homeland Security, and is updated as of 
July 1, 2004. 
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Charges, fees or sales, payment of....................................................... 1.25-80, 1.26-25 
Chronological record of seaman’s previous employment................................... 19.07 
Civil and criminal penalties............................................................................ 1.07-95 
Civil and Criminal Penalty Proceedings .....................................Part 1-subpart 1.07 
Civil Monetary Penalties, Adjusted for Inflation ..........................................Part 27 
Civil penalty appeals decisions....................................................................... 20.1004 
Claimants excluded .......................................................................................... 25.505 
Claimants excluded .......................................................................................... 25.505 
Claims Not Cognizable Under Other Law......................................Part 25-subpart F 
Claims not payable ....................................... 25.205, 25.405, 25.509,25.605, 25.735, 25.805 
Claims payable............................................. 25.203, 25.403, 25.507, 25.603, 25.703, 25.803 
Class II Civil Penalties ..................................................................................Part 20 
Closing of the record ........................................................................................ 20.709 
Coast Guard Aircraft and Vessels, Distinctive Markings ..............................Part 23 
Coast Guard Areas, Districts, Marine Inspection Zones, and Captain of 

the Port Zones ..........................................................................................Part 3 
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